
UNITED STATES ENVlRONMENTAL PROTECTION AGENCY
 
REGION VII
 

07 SEP 28 PH I: lf2 

IN THE MATTER OF ) 
) 

ENVInC/'i. :,' L :;lJTECTIOll 
AGdl<.:'(-iH::GION'i'11

REGIOI~r~L J:EA1WiG CLERK 

Honey Creek Farms, L.L.C. ) Docket No. CWA-07-2006-0174 
) 
) 
) 

Respondent ) 

--------------) 

ORDER 

Pursuant to 40 C.F.R. § 22.5(a)(1), facsimile filing of the Complaint and Consent 

Agreement/Final Order is authorized in this proceeding. Counsel for Complainant shall file the 

original page 9 within one day of receipt of that document from Respondent. 

~~
 
.....Robert L. Patrick 
Regional Judicial Officer 
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UNITED STATES BNVIR;ONMENTAL PROTECT:lONSAGiiNcfH I: l~ 2 
RBGIONVII ENVJ),I.',[ ,. L! ,lj i [eTION

901 NORTH FIFTH STREET /,GUICU\::.iCJi'/ I'll 
KANSAS CITY, KANSAS 66101 REGIO:l:IL 1,E/;fC;iG CLERK 

BEFORE nIB ADMINISTRATOR 

,IN THE MATTER OF 

Honey Creek Fm:ms. L.L.C.•
 
Respondent
 

Proceedings tinder Section 309(8)
 
of the Clean Water Act.
 
33 U,S.C. § 131900
 

COMPLAINT 

JUrildiction 

1. Thill is an. admini~trative ami'"'- for the assessment ofcivil penalties instituted 
pursuant to Section 309(g) ofthe Ped~ Water Pollution Control Act. commonly . 
referred to as the Clean Water Act (CWA)~ 33 U.S.C. § 131900, and in accordance with 
the UDited Smtcs EnviromnmJtal P~tion Agency's Consolidated Rules ofPractice 
Governing the .Administrative Assessment ofCivl1 Pena1ti~ and the 
RevoeationITemdnation or S~OJlofPermits. 40 C.F.R. Part 22 (Consolidated Rules 
ofPractice). 

2. 'Ibis Complaint and Consent AgreementIFiDal QJder alleges that the 
~ndent disehatged pollutaIIts into the Waters oftbe United States in Viola.tiQD of 
Secf:ions 301 and 402 of the CWA. 33 U.S.C. § 1311 and §1342. and regulation 

. promulgated thereunder. 

Parties 

3. The ComplainantJ by delegation from the Administrator ofEPA to the 
Regional Administrator, BPA, Region VII, is the Director ofRegion VB's w•• 
Wetlands and Pesticides Division. 
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4. R.espondent, }{oney Creek F~ L.LC.t is a limited liability company 
iDcoJporated UDder the law ofthe State ofKa:nsas and conducting business in 
Leavenwotth County. Kansas. 

Statutory aDd Regglatoa Framework of the CWA 

S. Section 301(a) ofthe CWA, 33 U.S.C. § 1311(a), prohibits the discharge of 
pollutants ~cept in coJDpli.ance with, Wei" alia, Section 402 of the CWAi 33 U.S.C. 

'-'.' § i342. :.~ .. ', '. 

6. Section 402 oftbe CWA, 33 U.S.C. § 1342, provides that pollutantJl JI1Jly be 
discharged. only in accordance with the terms ofa National Pollutant Discharge 
Elimination System (NPDES) pennit issued pursuant to that section. 

7. Section 402(p) oftbe CWA. 33 U.S.C. § 1342(p)~ sets forth requirements for 
the iSSWUlc:e ofNPDES permits for the discharge ofstonn water. Section 402(p) ofthe 
CWA, 33 U.S.C. § 1342(p), requires, input, that a diScharge ofstonn water associated 
with an industrial activitymust confonn with the requirements ofan NPDES perinit 
issued pt1rSQa11t to Sections 301 and 402 oftheCW~ 33 U.S.C. §§ 1311 and 1342.. 

8. Pursuant to Section 402(P) ofthe CWA, 33 U.S.C. § 1342(P). BPA 
promulgated regulations setting forth the NPDBS penuit requirements for storm water 
discharges at 40 C.F.R. § 122.26. 

9. 40 C.Plt. § 122.26(a)(1)(ti) an4 122.26(c) requires dischargm ofstorm water 
associated with industTial activity to apply for an individual permit or to seek coverage 
under a promulgated stann water general permit. 

10. 40 C.F.R. § 122.26{bX14){X:) defines ''stonn water discharge associated with 
industrial activiW'~, in part,. as COnstructioD activity ~luding clearing. grOOm& and 
excavation, exceptoperations that result in the distuibance of less than five (5) I!Cres of 
total buui IlI'8 which are not part ofa larger common plan ofdevelopment or sale. . 

11. The Kansas Department ofHea1th and Environment (KDHE) is the state 
agency with the authority to admW!ltcr the federal NPDBS Program inKansas pursuant to 
section 402 ofthe CWA, 33 U.S.C. § 1342. EPA maintains concummt enforcement 
authority with delegated states tor violations of the CWA. 

12. '!be KDHB issued a. NPDBS General Permit fur the discharge ofstoIIn water 
associated with construction activities. Pen:nit No. S-MCST-OI1o-1'(the General Permit). 
The General Permit be~8llle ~trective on Match 1, 2003. and expired. December 31 ~ 2006. 
The General Permit governed SWIm water discharges associated with: 

Large construction activity consists ofany activity (e.g. clearing, grubbing. 
excavating, gnKiing, etc.) which c1isttubs a cumulative tOtal oftive (5.0) or more acres or 
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that is part of a: larger common plan ofdevelopment or sale which will distlUb a. 
cumulative total of five or more acres. 

factual Batkl!:Pund 

13. Itespondant is a '-person" as defined by Section 502(5) ofthe CWA, 33 
U.s.C. § 1362(S). 

..."';' 14. All times relevant to this action, R,.espondent·was tbe:owne.r aridloT operator . 
ofa constructi.on site boWD, as Honey Creek Farms Developmen~ located gencra1J.y at 
166t11 S1reet and U.s. 24/40 lJighway, Basehor. Leavenworth County, lYP1sas (the Site). 
Construction and/or development activities occUlTed at the Site including clearing, 
grubbinB. grading, excavation, and till which diBtmbed five (5) or more acres oftotal 
land. area or which distuIbed less than five (5) acres of total land area that WQS part of a 
larger conunon plan ofdevelopment or aaIe. 

. IS. Storm. water, mow me~ surl'ace drainage, and l'Unoffwate.r leav~ . 
~ndent's facility and goes into an unnamed tributary 10 Hog Creek then into Hog 
Credca then into Stranger Creek and ultimately into the KanIlaB River. The runoffand 
drainage from Respondent's facility is "storm water" as defined by 40 C.F.R. 
§ 122.26(b)(l3). 

16. Stonn ...vater contains "pollutants" as defined by Section 502(6) of the CWA 
33 U.S.C. § 1362(6). 

17. Respondent'S storm water runoffis 'the ~.discharge ofa ~l1utant't as defined 
by CWA Section 502(12), 33 U.S.C. § 1362(12). 

18. The Sil:e was a. "point source" which caused the udischarge ofpollutants" as 
defined by CWA Section 502, 33 U.S.C. § .1362. . 

19. Respondent discharged pollutants into navigable waters as defined by Section 
502 ofthe CWA, 33 U.S.C. § 1362, when conducting the activities desc.ribed in 
Paragraph 14 above. 

20. RespODdent~s discharge ofpollutants associated with an industrial activityt as 
defined by 40 C.P.R. § 122.26(b){14){x), requires a pennit issued pUDluant to Section 402 
of the CWA, 33 U.S.C. § 1342. 

. 21. Respondent applied for and was issued NPDES permit coverage under the 
General Permit descn'bed in PanLgraph 12 above. KDHE assigned Respondent Pennit 
No. KSRI01315 issued on December 12, 2003. 

22. On May 9.2005. EPA performed an mspectioD ofthe Site under the al,lthority 
ofSection 308(a) ofthe CWA, 33 U.S.C. § 1318{a). Thepwposc ofthe inspection was 
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to evaluate Respond~t's complianoe with the permit described in paragraph 12 and 
Respondent'B compliance with the CWA. 

Fincijg.gs of YJoldoD 

FalJnre to Properly Desllll' Install and/or Maint@l a Sedimentation Basin - Count 1 

23, The fhets stated in Paragraphs 13 through 22 above BlC berein inCOl'ponrted.
-';' . 

; ,~:"':'''.: • ~ ,. I .' .~. - , ..... "." 

24. The (2eDeral Permit, Part VII (Storm Water PollUtion Prevention Plan 
(SWPPP) Requimnents and Guidelines), requizes Re6pondent to desi~ install. and 
maintain a sedimentation basin for eaoh drainage area with 10 or more ~ distuIbed at 
one time IQld to provide at loast 3,600 cubic foet ofstorage per acre dtained (or otherwise 
similarly effective best management ptaetices) to mirrimize erosion and control sediment, 

2S. The inspection referenced in P~22 abo~ revealed and. documented 
that Respondeot's SWPlJP included construction ofa detention basin, which was not 
p1'operly designed, installed, and/or maintained to minimize erosion ~d control sediment, 
and t'ml1ted in the mi8fation ofsediment to the receiving water. 

26. Responckmt·s failure to properly design. install, andlor maintain a . 
sedimentation basin is a violation ofPart vn ofRespondent's General Permit, and as 
such, is a violation ofSections 301(a) and 402(P) of the CWA, 33 U.S.C. §§ 1311(a) and 
1342(p). 

27. Pursuant to Sect.fon 309(g) oft.be CWA, 33 U.S.C. § 1319(g), it is proposed 
that a civil penalty be assessed against RespoDdent. the aD10unt ofwhich is set forth in 
Paragraph 45 below. 

Failure to Maintain Best Management Practites - Count 2 

28. The facts stated in Paragraphs 13 throush 22 above lilte herein b1corporated. 

29. The General Penni~ Part VII (Storm Water Pollution Prevention Plan 
(SWPPP) ReqlJirements and Guidelines). requires Respondent to maintain all pollution 
control measures and systems in good order~ iD accordance with the reference document 
(Bnvironmentill Protection Agency document number HPA 832-R-92"()()S)~ to acbieve 
compliance with tbe terms ofthe General Permit. 

30. The inspection referenced in Pal'agrapl.t 22 above, revealed and documented 
that Respondent'~ pollution control meQSQTe8, which itlc.luded sediment capture devices 
(i.e. silt fences and storm inlet, drain protections, and stabilization), were not properly 
maintained, and resulted in the migration ofsedimem to the receiving water. 
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31. Respondent·s failure to properly maintain. its pollution control m~ is a 
violatio:p ofPart vn ofRespoQdeDt's 0enera1 Permit, and as ~ is a violation of 
Sections 301(a) and 402(P) ofthe CWA. 33 U.S.C. §§ 1311(a) and 1342(p). 

.32. PUISQ8D.t to Section 309(g) of the CWA, 3:3 U.S.C. § 1319(g). itisproposed 
that a civil penaltybe assessed against Respondent, the amount ofwbich is set forth in 
Paragraph 45 below. 

...~. .. '. Failure to IDspect and DOCQmeDt IDspecttou R:egu.Jal'ly ... Count 3 

33. The facts stated in Paragraphs 13 through 22 above are herein incorporated. 

34. The General Permit. Part VII{Stonn Wator Pollution Prevention Plan 
(SWPPP) Requirements and Guidelines), requir~ that regular.inspections be perfonned 
at a minimum ofonce per mouth to identify main1euance needs and/or SWPPP 
defici~c:s. 8!Id within twent:y·fom (24) hours after each precipitation event ofO.S inch 
or more. In a4di1ion, it requires that any deficiencies be noted in a report -and cotreeted 
within seven cal~ days ofthe inspection. The report is to be kept at a Site that is 
reQdilyavailable from the permitted Site until final stabi1ization is ~ed. 

35. The inspection refer~ in paragraph 22 above, revealed that Respondent 
did not adequately note deficiencies in a report and correct such deficiencie~ within 
twenty-four (24) hours ofthe inspection ftom the iDitiation ofconstt'UCtion aotivity in 
May 2004 through September 2004) Decerobec 2004. and January 2005, which resulted 
in a fililure to maintain. and ins1all appropriate pollution control measures to pnwent the 
migration ofsediment to the reociving water. 

36. R~Ddent's Wlure to adequately petfonn, document, and respond to Site 
inspections is a violation o{Part vn ofR.espondent's General Permit, and as such. is a 
vioJalion ofSections 301(a) and 402(p) ofthe CWA, 33 U.S.C. § UtI(a) and § 1342(P). 

37. Pmsuant to Section 309(g) oftho CW~ 33 U.S.C. § 1319(g). it is proposed 
that a civil penalty be assessed agaiJlst Respondent, the amount ofwhich is set forth in 
pa:tagrap~4S below, 

CONSENT AGREEMENT 

38. Respondent ~its the jurisdictional allegations ofthis Complaint and 
Consent Agreement and Final Order and agrees not to contest the BPA's jurisdiction in 
this proceeding or any sUbsequent proceeding to enforce the tem1B ofthe Final Order. 

39. Respondent neither admits nor denies the fl'tctual allegations oon'biined in this 
Complaint and Consent Agreement and Pinlill Order. 

40. ~ndent waives auy right to contest the allegations and it~ right to appeal 
the pmpotSed Final Order accompanying this Consent Agreement. 
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41. Respo1lde:nt and Complainant each agree to bear their own costs 8114 
attomey's fees. 

42. Nothing contained in the Final Order S!Wl alter or-otherwise affect 
Responclent-" obIi,gations to comply with all applicable federalt ~ and local , 
environmental statutes and regulations and applicable pemrits: 

43.· 'ReSpondent consents to the issuaDce-of1he·Final Order and consents to the· ':', 
payment ofamitigated civil penalty in the mnount ofForty Thousand: Dollars ($40,OOO) 
to be paid witbin tbirty (30) days of the effective date ofthe, Final Order. 

44. Respondcmt understands that its failure to timely pay any portion ofthe 
mitigated civil penalty stated in Paragraph 43 ab~ve, may ~ in the commencement of 
a civil action in Federal District Court to recover the full remaining balance, along with 
penalties and accumulated inter~ In such oaset interest shall accrue thereon at the 
applicable statutory rate on the unpaid balance un'lil such civil pmalty and any accrued 
interest are paid in full. Additionally, as provided by 31 U.S.C. § 3717(e)(2), a six 
percent (6%) per W1UIn penalty Oate charge) D;lay be assessed on any amount not paid 
within ninety (90) days ofthe due dGe. 

45. The penalty payment made by Respondent pursoant to tbis Complaint and 
Comlem Agreement and Final Order is payment ofa civil penalty and aball Dot be 
deductible for purposes of federal taxes. 

46. The 1.lJldersigned representative(s) ofRespondent certifieS that he is fblly 
authorizccl to enter the terms and conditions ofthis Complaint and Consent .Agreement 
and Final Order and to execute and legally bind Respondent to it. 

47. This Consent AgteeIJ1eI1t maybe signed by EPA and,Respondent in part and 
coUD~art. ,This Consent Agreement and Final Order may be executed by EPA upon 
receipt from Respondent ofa signature page. Upon its execution. a copy ofthe executed 
agreement shall be sent by U.S. mail to Respon~. . 

48. Respondent agrees that the original Consent Agreement and Final Order 
signed by Respondent shall b" tIansmitted to Melissa A.C. Bagley, Assistant Regional 
Counsel. U.S. Bnviromnental Protection Agency, Region VJt 901 N. 5111 St., Kansas City. 
Kansas 66101. Upolithe EPA's receipt ofthe signed original from Respond~ it shall 
be filed with the Regional Hearing Clerk. 

BINAL ORDER ' 

IT IS HEREBY AGREED BY THE PAB.TIESt and PlU'Suant to Section 309(g) of 
the Clean Water Act (CWA'h 33 U.S.C. '§ 1319(g). it is ORDERED that: . . 
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1. Respondent sba11 pay a civil penalty o£Forty Thousand Dollars ($40~OOO). 
Said penalty shall be paid in fUll within ~ (30) days following receipt by Respondent 
ofa fWly aeeuted copy ofthis Complaint and Co~tAgreement and Final Order. 
Responc:leQt shall pay the penalty by certified or casl1iers cheolc payable to WZ'reasurer, 
Wted States ofAmerica" and shall deliver it, With a traDSmitta11hat identifies-the elise 
name and docket number to: 

BPA-Region VII	 ' , 
".." , '	 P.O. Box 371099M ' .-:, ." "" :' , ,.
 

Pittsburgh~ PA 15251.
 

The chcok m1Ut; also be annotated with the dock:et number and with the name of1be case. 
Copies of the transmittal letter and the oheck shall be simultaneously seo.t to: 

Regional Hearing Clerk 
U.S. Environmental Protection Agency - Region vn 
901 N. 5~ S1reet . 
Kansas City, Kansas 66101; and 

Melissa A.C. 'Bagley 
Office ofRegional Counsel 
U.S. Ellvironmental Protection Agency ~ Region vn 
901 N. stl1 Street 
Kansas City, Kansas 66101. 

2. Should the civil penalty not be paid as provided above. interest will be 
assessed at the annual rate established by the Secretary of the Treasury pursuant to 31 
U.S.C. § 3717. The interest will be assessed on the overdue amount from the due date 
through the date ofpaYment. 

3. Respondent and Complainant shall pay th~ir own costs and attorneys' fees 
incurred as a rosult of this action. 

Partie! BOJllld; 

4. TbiB Final Order shall apply to and. be binding upon Respondent, its agents, 
successors and assigns.' Respondent shall ensure that its directors, officers, employees, 
contractors. consultants. firms, or other persons or entities acting under or for them with 
respect to matters included herein conip]y with the terms of this Consent Agreement and 
Final Order. 

R.elerva!!gn of Riglm 

S. BPA reserves the right to enforce the tenn.fl of thia Final Order by initiating a 
judicial or adminifltrlltive action pursuant to Section 309 of the CW~ 33 U.S.C. § 1319. 
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6. With respect to matters not ~ in this FiDal Order~ BPA res«vcs the 
right to take any enforcement action pursuant to the CW~ or any other available legal 
authority, including without limitation. the right to seck ugU'l:lCti1te relief: monetary 
pe,na1tica and for punitive dam3geB. 

E1I~eDate 

7. This Final Order shall be effective upon ~pt by Respondent ofa fUlly 
,·executed copy heteo£. All'time pmOds-hei'ein id1alI be c:alculated from the-effective date 
\.Ulless otherwise provided in 1.tis Finl\l Order. 

8. This executed Consent Agreement and Final Order sba11 be filed with the 
Regional Hearing Clelk, U.S. Environmeotal Protection Apncy. 901 North St1l Street, 
Kansas City, Kansas 66101. 

COMPLAINANT: 
U.S. NVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION AGENCY 

f
 Wil1iam~
 
Director 
Water~ W~Q.s and Pesticides Division 
U.S. Envirownenta1 Protection Agep.cy
 
Region VII
 

Q!?7!oJ
Date ;~AsSIstant ~ona1 COuns 

U.S. Environmental Protec:tiOll Agency
 
RegionVU
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FOR RESPONDENT: 
HONEY CRBBK FARMS', L.L.C.: 

.. 

.... " 
"",:\'., . ,...,:'.-'.'" , 
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IT IS SO ORDERED. 

~~-IRobeo1L.Pattlck~ 
Regional Judicial Officer 

, "I , . 
~'.-.;; , ~ .... i; ".1, ....,.. 
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CER.TIFICATE OF.SERVICE 

r certify that on the date below. I haDd delivered the original and one true copy of 
this Complaint and Consent AgreemmtIFinaJ. Order to the Regional Heanng Clerkt 
United States ~nmental PrOtection Agency, 901 NOrth Fijth Street. Kai1sas Uty. 
~ 66101. J further certif.y1haton the date below I sent by certified mail, rewm 
receipt requ~ a we and correct copy ofthe origiJiaI Cotnplaint and Consent 
AgreementIFinal.?rder ~~ the rollo~ng: 

,'J..... .." ,.' 

Honey C~ F8IJD,s~ L.L.C. 
P.O. Box 3452 
Lawr~ce, Kansas 66046. 

Dated tbis__ day of__-_~_.2007. 

Name 



IN THE MATTER OF Honey Creek Fanns, L.L.c., Respondent 
Docket No. CWA-07-2006-0174 

CERTIFICATE OF SERVICE 

I certify that a true and correct copy of the foregoing Complaint and Consent Agreement/Final 
Order was sent this day in the following manner to the addressees: 

Copy hand delivered to 
Attomey for Complainant: 

Melissa A..c. Bagley 
Assistant Regional Counsel 
Region VII 
United States Environmental Protection Agency 
901 N. 5th Street 
Kansas City, Kansas 66101 

Copy by U.S. Certified Mail, 
Return Receipt Requested, to: 

Honey Creek Fanns, L.L.c. 
PO Box 3452 
Lawrence, Kansas 66046 

Dated: 9Jag/o1 

~ 
Hearing Clerk, Region 7 


